Recorder of 438 o'clock A. APR 29 1981

Reception No. 314309 MILDRED ALSDORF, RECORDER

BY-LAWS

OF

SKYLINE CONDOMINIUMS, INC.

ARTICLE I

OBJECT

- 1.1 The purpose for which this non-profit Corporation is formed is to govern the condominium property situate in the County of Garfield, State of Colorado, which is known as the Skyline Condominiums, and which property has been submitted to the provisions of the Condominium Ownership Act of the State of Colorado by recorded Condominium Declaration (Declaration).
- any other person that might use the facilities of the project in any manner are subject to the regulations set forth in these By-Laws. The mere acquisition or rental of any of the condominium units, hereinafter referred to as "units" or "unit," of the project or the mere act of occupancy of any unit will signify that these By-Laws are accepted, ratified, and will be complied with.

ARTICLE II

MEMBERSHIP, VOTING, QUORUM, PROXIES

- Membership in this Corporation 2.1 Membership. (Association) shall be limited to record owners of the units and shall be subject to the Declaration. One membership in this Association shall be issued to the record owner of each The record owners of all units collectively shall unit. constitute all members. In the event any unit is owned by two or more persons, whether by joint tenancy, tenancy in common, or otherwise, the membership as to such unit shall be joint and a single membership for a unit shall be issued in the names of all of the owners, and they shall designate to the Association, in writing, the name of one person who shall vote said membership. No membership shall be issued to any other person or persons except as they be issued in substitution for outstanding memberships assigned to new record owners of units.
- 2.2 <u>Classes of Membership</u>. The Association shall have two classes of voting membership:

Class A. Class A members shall be all unit owners, except Van Hoose and Colohan, a general partnership, and each shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each unit owned.

Class B. The Class B member shall be Van Hoose and Colohan, a general partnership, and it shall be entitled to three (3) votes for each unit owned.

The Class B membership shall cease and shall be converted to Class A membership when the total votes outstanding in the Class A membership equals or exceeds the total votes outstanding in the Class B membership or two (2) years from date of the incorporation of the Association, whichever shall first occur.

- 2.3 <u>Voting</u>. A majority of the total votes cast at a meeting at which a quorum shall be present shall be binding upon all unit owners for all purposes except when a higher percentage is required by these By-Laws, the Declaration or by law. Cumulative voting shall not be allowed.
- 2.4 Quorum. The presence, either in person or by proxy, of at least thirty percent (30%) of the members of record shall constitute a quorum of the Association for all purposes unless the representation of a larger group shall be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these By-Laws, and in such event representation of the number so required shall constitute a quorum.
- 2.5 <u>Proxies</u>. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. Proxies must be filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of each meeting.

ARTICLE III

ADMINISTRATION

- 3.1 Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Association shall be held at such place as the Board of Managers may determine in Silt, Colorado.
- 3.2 Annual Meeting. The first annual meeting of the Association will be held on any day during the month of _________. Thereafter, the annual meetings of the Association shall be held on the first day of ________ or at such other time as the Association may by majority vote approve. At such meetings, there shall be elected a Board of Managers in accordance with the requirements set forth herein. The Association may also transact such other business of the Association as may properly come before it.
- Association, for any purpose or purposes other than those regulated by statute, may be called by the President or by resolution of the Board of Managers, or upon a petition signed by at least thirty percent (30%) of the members of the Association. Such petition shall state the purpose or purposes of such proposed meeting. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting, except as stated in the notice thereof, unless by consent of at least two-thirds (2/3rds) of the Association members present, either in person or by proxy.

- 3.4 Notice of Meeting. The President or Secretary shall give or cause to be given notice of the time, place, and purpose of holding each annual or special meeting by mailing or hand-delivering such notice at least ten (10) days, but not more than twenty (20) days, prior to such meeting to each Association member at the respective addresses of said members as they appear on the records of the Association.
- 3.5 Adjourned Meetings. If the number of Association members necessary to constitute a quorum shall fail to attend in person or by proxy at the time and place of meeting, the Chairman of the meeting, or a majority in interest of the Association members present in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until the necessary number of Association members shall be in attendance. At any adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the original meeting.
- 3.6 <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. Any member may at any time waive any notice required to be given under these By-Laws, or by statute or otherwise, and the presence of a member in person at any meeting of the members shall be deemed such a waiver.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF MANAGERS

4.1 Number and Qualification.

(a) The affairs of this Association shall be governed by a Board of Managers consisting of not less than three (3) nor more than five (5) persons, all of whom shall be unit owners. The following persons shall act in such capacity for the first year of its existence, or until their successors are elected:

Donald Van Hoose William J. Colohan Vernon Hollen.

- (b) Where a member of the Association elected to the Board of Managers is other than a natural person, it shall designate one of its officers, principals, partners or agents to perform its duties as one of the members of the Board of Managers.
- 4.2 Powers and Duties. The Board of Managers shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association, and may do all such acts and things as are not by law or by these By-Laws directed to be exercised and done by the members. The powers of the Board of Managers shall include, but not be limited to, all of the rights and duties of the Board of

Managers as set forth elsewhere in these By-Laws and the Articles of Incorporation, and in the Declaration, and shall also include the power to promulgate such rules and regulations pertaining to such rights and duties as may be deemed proper and which are consistent with the foregoing. The Board of Managers may delegate such dutes as appear in the best interests of the Association and to the extent permitted by law.

The Board of Managers may, on contract, delegate the routine operation and management of the Association affairs to a Managing Agent to be selected by the Board of Managers. Such Managing Agent shall be responsible to the Board of Managers, and shall submit a comprehensive report on his activites at each annual meeting.

4.3 Election and Term of Office. The term of the managers named in the Articles of Incorporation shall be until the first annual membership meeting, or until their successors are duly chosen and qualify. At the first annual meeting the members shall elect one (1) manager for a term of one (1) year and two (2) managers for terms of two (2) years, and at each annual meeting thereafter the members shall elect the number of managers whose terms have expired for a term of two (2) years. The number of

managers may be altered from time to time by the action of a majority of the members of the Association at any regular or special meeting called for such purpose. In the event of any increase in the number of managers in advance of the annual meeting, each additional manager shall be elected by the then Board of Managers and hold office until his successor is elected and shall qualify.

- 4.4 <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies on the Board of Managers caused by any reason shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining managers, even though they may consist of less than a quorum, and each member so elected shall be a manager until his successor is duly elected by the members of the Association at the next annual meeting.
- 4.5 Removal of Managers. At any regular or special meeting of the Association, any one or more of the managers may be removed, with or without cause, at any time by the affirmative vote of seventy-five percent (75%) of the entire membership of record and a successor may then be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. Any manager whose removal has been proposed by the members of the Association shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting.

- 4.6 Compensation. No compensation shall be paid to managers for services as manager. No remuneration shall be paid to a manager for services performed by him for the Association in any other capacity, unless a resolution authorizing such remuneration shall have been adopted by the Board of Managers before the services are undertaken.
- 4.7 Organization Meeting. The first meeting of a newly elected Board of Managers shall be held within thirty (30) days of election at such time and place as shall be fixed at the meeting at which such managers were elected, and no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected managers in order to legally constitute such meeting, provided a majority of the whole Board shall be present.
- 4.8 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Managers may be held at such time and place as shall be determined in the Town of Silt, from time to time, by a majority of the managers, but at least one meeting shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board of Managers shall be given to each manager, personally or by mail, telephone, or telegraph, at least ten (10) days prior to the day named for the meeting.
- 4.9 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Managers may be called by the President on ten (10)

days notice to each manager, given personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place, and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Managers shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least fifty percent (50%) of the managers.

- 4.10 <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. Before or at any meeting of the Board of Managers, any manager may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a manager at any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof. If all the managers are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.
- 4.11 Quorum. A majority of the Board of Managers shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but if at any meeting of the Board there be less than a quorum present, a majority of these present may adjourn the meeting from time to time.
- 4.12 Adjournment. The Board of Managers may adjourn any meeting from day to day or for such other time as may be prudent or necessary in the interest of the Association,

provided that no meeting may be adjourned for a period longer than thirty (30) days.

4.13 <u>Fidelity Bonds</u>. The Board of Managers shall require that all officers and employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds furnish adequate fidelity bonds. The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS

- Association shall be a President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by and from the Board of Managers. The managers may appoint an Assistant Secretary and an Assistant Treasurer, and such other officers as in their judgment may be necessary and such officers need not also be members of the Board of Managers.
- 5.2 <u>Election of Officers</u>. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Managers, at the organizational meeting of each new Board, and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.
- 5.3 Removal of Officers. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Managers, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and

his successor elected at any regular meeting of the Board of Managers, or at any special meeting of the Board called for such purpose.

- 5.4 President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board of Managers. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are normally vested in the office of the president of a corporation, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the members as he may, in his discretion, decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.
- 5.5 Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the mebmers; he shall have charge of the membership books and other such books and papers as the Board of Managers may direct; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary.
- 5.6 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility for Association funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate records of all receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association. He shall be responsible for the deposit of all moneys and other valuable effects in the name, and to the

credit, of the Association in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Managers.

5.7 Compensation. No compensation shall be paid to officers for their services as officers. No remuneration shall be paid to an officer for services performed by him for the Association in any other capacity, unless a resolution authorizing such remuneration shall have been adopted by the Board of Managers before the services are undertaken.

ARTICLE VI

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND MANAGERS

or officer, his heirs and personal representatives against all loss, costs and expenses, including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by him in connection with any action, suit, or proceeding to which he may be made a party by reason of his being or having been a manager or officer of the Association, except as to matters as to which he shall be finally adjudged in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence or willful misconduct. In the event of a settlement, indemnification shall be provided only in connection with such matters covered by the settlement as to which the Association is advised by counsel that the person to be indemnified has not been guilty of gross negligence or willful

misconduct in the performance of his duty as such manager or officer in relation to the matter involved. The foregoing rights shall not be exclusive of other rights to which such manager or officer shall be entitled. All liability, loss, damage, costs, and expenses incurred or suffered by the Association by reason or arising out of or in connection with the foregoing indemnification provisions shall be treated and handled by the Association as common expenses; provided, however, that nothing in this Article VI contained shall be deemed to obligate the Association to indemnify any member or owner of a unit who is or has been a manager or officer of the Association with respect to any duties or obligations assumed or liabilities incurred by him under and by virtue of the Declaration as a member or owner of a unit covered thereby.

ARTICLE VII

POWERS, RIGHTS, AND DUTIES OF THE ASSOCIATION AND MEMBERS THEREOF

7.1 The Association and its members shall have all the powers, rights, duties and obligations set forth in the Articles of Incorporation for the Association, these By-Laws, rules and regulations adopted by the Board of Managers of the Association, and the Declaration, and as any of the same may be duly amended.

- 7.2 No transfers of membership in the Association shall be made except as provided therein and no transfer shall be made upon the books of the Association within ten (10) days next preceding the annual meeting of the Association.
- authorization, right, and power to enter into one or more management agreements with third parties in order to facilitate efficient operation of the general common elements. It shall be the primary purpose of such management agreements to provide for the administration, management, repair, and maintenance of said real property, all improvements thereon designated as general common elements, and the roofs and exterior walls of the residence units.
- 7.4 The terms of said management agreements shall be as determined by the Board of Managers to be in the best interests of the Association, and shall be subject to the Articles of Incorporation, these By-Laws, and the Declaration.

ARTICLE VIII

CORPORATE SEAL

- 8.1 The Board of Managers shall provide a suitable corporate seal containing the name of the Association, which seal shall be in the custody and control of the Secretary.
- 8.2 The corporate seal shall be in circular form, and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Association

in the circle and the word "Seal" in the middle. If and when so directed by the Board of Managers, a duplicate seal may be kept and used by such officer or other person as the Board of Managers shall name.

ARTICLE IX

MISCELLANEOUS

- 9.1 Books and Accounts. Books and accounts of the Association shall be kept under the direction of the Treasurer and in accordance with the reasonable standards of accounting procedure.
- 9.2 <u>Auditing</u>. At the close of each fiscal year, the books and records of the Association shall be reviewed by a Certified Public Accountant whose report will be prepared and furnished to the Association. Based upon such reports, the Association will have available for inspection by its members a statement of the income and disbursements of the Association for each fiscal year.
- 9.3 Inspection of Books. Financial reports, such as are required to be furnished, and the membership records of the Association shall be available at the principal offices of the Association for inspection during convenient workday business hours by any member. Upon ten (10) days notice to the Managing Agent or the Board of Managers and payment of a reasonable fee, any unit owner shall be furnished

a statement of his account setting forth the amount of any unapid assessments or other charges due and owing from such owner.

- 9.4 Execution of Association Documents. With the prior authorization of the Board of Managers, all notes, checks, and contracts or other obligations shall be executed on behalf of the Association by any two (2) officers of the Association.
- 9.5 <u>Fiscal Year</u>. The fiscal year of the Association shall be determined by the Board of Managers.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS

be amended by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3rds) of the members of the Association present or represented by proxy at any regular or special meeting, provided that a quorum, as prescribed in Article II herein, is present at any such meeting. Amendments may be proposed by the Board of Managers or by petition signed by at least thirty percent (30% of the members. A statement of any proposed amendment shall accompany the notice of any regular or special meeting at which such proposed amendment shall be voted upon. These By-Laws may not be amended insofar as such amendment would be inconsistent with the recorded restrictions of the property

and no amendment may be adopted without first giving written notice thereof to all first mortgagees.

ARTICLE XI

OBLIGATIONS OF THE OWNERS

11.1 Assessments. Except as is otherwise provided in the Declaration, all owners shall be obligated to pay the assessments imposed by the Association to meet the common expenses. The assessments shall be made pro rata according to the percentage interest of each member in and to the general common elements as assigned by the Declaration and shall be due annually in advance on the first day of each calendar year, or more frequently as may be determined by the Board of Managers. A member shall be deemed to be in good standing and entitled to vote at any annual or special meeting of members, within the meaning of these By-Laws, if, and only if, he shall have fully paid all assessments made or levied against him and the unit owned by him.

11.2 Maintenance and Repair.

(a) Every owner must perform promptly at his own expense all maintenance and repair work within his own unit and the patio or balcony attached to his unit and the fence separating the patios. An owner shall not do an act or any work that will impair the structural soundness or integrity of the building or any general common element or

any common component thereof, or impair any easement or hereditament.

- (b) All the repairs of internal installations of the unit such as water, light, gas, power, sewage, telephone, sanitary installations, doors, windows, electrical fixtures, appliances, and equipment installed within the unit, commencing at a point at which the utility lines, pipes, wires, conduits, or systems serving the unit (which for brevity are hereafter referred to as "utilities") enter the unit, shall be at the owner's expense. Utility fixtures and appliances (but not lines, pipes, wires, conduits, or systems) which are not located within a unit but which exist for the purpose of providing utility services only for one unit shall be maintained and kept in repair by the owner of that unit, but a unit owner shall not be liable for utilities extending through his unit which do not serve his unit.
- (c) An owner shall be obligated to reimburse the Association promptly upon receipt of its statement for any expenditures incurred by it in repairing or replacing any general common element damaged by his negligence or by the negligence of his tenants, invitees, or agents.
- 11.3 <u>General</u>. Each owner shall comply strictly with the provisions of the recorded Declaration. Each owner shall always endeaver to observe and promote the cooperative

purposes for the accomplishment of which this condominium complex was built.

11.4 Use of Units Internal Changes.

- (a) All units shall be utilized for residential purposes only.
- (b) An owner shall not make structural modifications or alterations to his unit or installations located therein or the patio or balcony attached thereto or the fence separating the patios without the written approval of the Board of Managers, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or which may be issued upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Managers may reasonably require. The Board of Managers shall be notified in writing of the intended modifications through the President or any other officer of the Association.
- grant the right of entry to the Managing Agent or Board of Managers of the Association, or any representative thereof, to have access to his unit from time to time during reasonable hours as may be necessary for maintenance, repair, or replacement of any of the general common elements therein accessible therefrom, or for making emergency repair therein necessary to prevent damage to the general common elements or to another unit or units. Damage to the interior of any part

of a unit as a result of such entry thereof shall be a common expense of all of the owners. Provided, however, that if such entry resulting in damage was made necessary as a result of the negligence or malfeasance of the unit owner, then such unit owner shall be responsible for all of such damage.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto 198 set their hands this 29 day of April , 1989.

BOARD OF MANAGERS:

Ponald L. Van Hoose

Recorded at 9/3 o'clock A M. JAN 8 1981

Reception No. 310931 MILDRED ALSDORF, RECORDER

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION

FOR

SKYLINE CONDOMINIUMS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

WHEREAS, Van Hoose and Colohan, a general partnership, (Declarant), is the owner of the following described real property situate in the County of Garfield, State of Colorado:

Lots 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and 28, Block 1, Odd Fellows Addition to the Town of Silt

WHEREAS, Declarant desires to establish a condominium organization under the Condominium Ownership Act of the State of Colorado; and

WHEREAS, Declarant intends to construct fourteen (14) condominium units to be located in three (3) buildings;

WHEREAS, Declarant does hereby establish a plan for the ownership in fee simple of real property estates consisting of the area or space contained in each of the condominium units in the building improvements, and the co-ownership by the individual and separate owners thereof, as tenants in common, of all of the remaining real property hereinafter defined and referred to as the general common elements;

NOW THEREFORE, Declarant does hereby publish and declare that the following terms, covenants, conditions, easements, restrictions, uses, limitations, and obligations shall be deemed to run with the land, shall be a burden and a benefit to Declarant, its successors and assigns and any person acquiring or owning an interest in the real property and improvements, their grantees, heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

1. <u>DEFINITIONS</u>. Unless the context shall expressly provide otherwise, the following definitions shall apply:

- (a) "Unit" means an individual air space which is contained within the perimeter walls, floors, and ceilings of a unit in the buildings as shown on the Map together with the patio or balcony attached thereto and fence separating the patios.
- (b) "Condominium Unit" means an individual air space unit together with the interest in the general common elements.
- (c) "Owner" means a person, firm, corporation, partnership, association, or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, owning one or more condominium units.
- (d) "General common elements " means and includes:
- (1) the land on which the buildings are located;
- (2) the foundations, columns, girders, beams, supports, main walls, roofs, sidewalks, and driveways of the buildings;
- (3) the yards, landscaped areas, storage areas, and parking areas;
- (4) the installations consisting of the equipment and materials existing for common use;
- (5) all other parts of the property necessary or convenient to its existence, maintenance and safety, or normally in common use.
- (e) "Entire premises", "premises", "project", or "property" means and includes the land, the buildings, all improvements and structures thereon, and all rights, easements and appurtenances belonging thereto.
- (f) "Condominium project" means all of the land and improvements initially and subsequently

submitted to this Declaration.

- (g) "Common expenses" means and includes:
 - (1) All sums lawfully assessed against the general common elements;
 - (2) Expenses of administration and management, maintenance, repair or replacement of the general common elements;
 - (3) Expenses declared common expenses by the unit owners.
 - (h) "Association" means Skyline Condominiums, Inc., a Colorado non-profit corporation, the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of which shall govern the administration of this condominium property, and the members of which shall be all of the owners of the condominium units of this condominium property. Voting rights of the members shall be as established by the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Association.
 - (i) "Map" or "plans" means and includes the engineering survey of the land locating thereon all of the improvements, the floor and elevation plans and any other drawings or diagrammatic plan depicting a part of or all of the improvements.
 - (j) "Building" or "Buildings" means the building improvements comprising a part of the property.
- 2. CONDOMINIUM MAP. The Map shall be filed for record prior to the first conveyance of any condominium unit. Such Map shall consist of and set forth (1) the legal description of the surface of the land; (2) the linear measurements and location, with reference to the exterior boundaries of the land, of the buildings and all other improvements on said land; (3) floor plans and elevation plans of the buildings showing the location, the unit designations, and the linear dimensions of each unit; (4) the elevations of the unfinished interior surfaces of the floors and ceilings, and the linear measurements showing the thickness of the perimeter walls. The Map shall contain a certificate of a licensed professional engineer certifying that

the Map fully and accurately depicts the layout, measurements, and location of all the improvements, the unit designations, the dimensions of such units and the elevations of the floors and ceilings. In interpreting the Map, the existing physical boundaries of each unit as constructed shall be conclusively presumed to be its boundaries. Declarant reserves the right to amend the Map, from time to time, to conform the same to the actual physical location of the constructed improvements and to any changes, modifications, or alterations.

- 3. DIVISION OF PROPERTY INTO CONDOMINIUM UNITS. The real property and improvements to be constructed thereon are hereby divided into fourteen (14) separate fee simple estates, each such estate consisting of one unit together with an apportenant undivided fractional interest in and to the general common elements of one-fourteenth (1/14). The general common elements shall be held in common by the owners thereof. Each condominium unit shall be assigned a number of one (1) to fourteen (14). Each condominium unit shall be identified on the Map by the number assigned of one (1) to fourteen (14).
- 4. INSEPARABILITY OF A CONDOMINIUM UNIT. Each unit and the undivided interest in the general common elements appurtenant thereto shall be inseparable and may be conveyed, leased, encumbered, devised, or inherited only as a condominium unit.
- 5. DESCRIPTION OF A CONDOMINIUM UNIT. Every deed, lease, mortgage, trust deed, will, or other instrument may legally describe a condominium unit by its identifying unit number, followed by the words, "SKYLINE CONDOMINIUMS" with further reference to the recorded Declaration and Map. Every such description shall be deemed good and sufficient for all purposes to convey, transfer, encumber, or otherwise affect the unit, the general common elements and also to convey the right of ingress and egress to and from said unit.
- 6. SEPARATE ASSESSMENT AND TAXATION NOTICE TO
 ASSESSOR. Declarant shall give written notice to the Assessor
 of the creation of condominium ownership of this property, as
 is provided by law, so that each unit and its percentage of undivided interest in the general common elements shall be deemed
 a separate parcel and subject to separate assessment and taxation.

- 7. TITLE. A condominium unit may be held and owned by more than one person as joint tenants or as tenants in common, or any real property tenancy relationship recognized under the laws of Colorado.
- 8. NONPARTIONABILITY OF GENERAL COMMON ELEMENTS. The general common elements shall be owned in common by all of the owners of the units and shall remain undivided, and no owner shall bring any action for partition or division of the general common elements.
- 9. <u>USE AND OCCUPANCY</u>. All units shall be used and occupied for residential purposes by the owner, by the owner's family or the owner's guests and tenants.
- 10. EASEMENTS AND ENCROACHMENTS. If any portion of the general common elements now or hereafter encroaches upon any unit or units, a valid easement for the encroachment and for the maintenance of the same, so long as it stands, shall and does exist. If any portion of a unit now or hereafter encroaches upon the general common area or upon an adjoining unit or units, a valid easement for the encroachment and for the maintenance of the same, so long as it stands, shall and does exist. For title or other purposes, such encroachments and easements shall not be considered or determined to be encumbrances either on the general common elements or the units.
- LIMITATION OF MECHANIC'S LIEN RIGHTS AND INDEM-11. No labor performed or materials furnished and incorporated in a unit with the consent or at the request of the owner thereof or his agent or his contractor or subcontractor shall be the basis for filing of a lien against the unit of any other owner not expressly consenting to or requesting the same, or against the general common elements owned by such Each owner shall indemnify and hold harmless other owners. each of the other owners from and against all liability arising from the claim of any lien against the unit of any other owner or against the general common elements for construction performed or for labor, materials, services, or other products incorporated in or otherwise attributable to the owner's unit at such owner's request.
- 12. ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT. The administration and management of this condominium property shall be governed by the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of the

Association. A certified copy of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Association shall be recorded simultaneously with this Declaration. An owner of a condominium unit, upon becoming an owner, shall be a member of the Association and shall remain a member for the period of his ownership. An exclusive agent for the operation and management of this condominium project may be appointed by the Association.

- RESERVATION FOR ACCESS-MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND The owners shall have the irrevocable right, to 13. EMERGENCIES. be exercised by the Managing Agent or Board of Managers of the Association, to have access to each unit from time to time during reasonable hours as may be necessary for the inspection, maintenance, repair, or replacement of any of the general common elements therein necessary to prevent damage to the general common elements or to another unit or units. Damage to the interior of any part of a unit resulting from the maintenance, repair, emergency repair, or replacement of any of the general common elements or as a result of emergency repairs within another unit at the instance of the Association shall be a common expense of all of the owners provided, however, that if such damage is the result of the negligence of a unit owner, then such unit owner shall be responsible for all of such damage. Restoration of the damaged improvements shall be substantially the same as the condition of such improvements prior to the damage.
- OWNERS' MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY OF UNIT. For purposes of maintenance, repair, alteration and remodeling, an owner shall be deemed to own the windows, doors, interior -nonsupporting walls, the materials (such as, but not limited to, plaster, gypsum dry walls, paneling, wallpaper, brick, stone, paint, wall and floor tile, and flooring, but not including the sub-flooring) making up the finished surfaces of the perimeter walls, ceilings, and floors within the unit and the unit doors and windows. Each unit owner shall also be responsible for the maintenance and repair of the patio or decks attached to his unit and the fence separating the patios. The owner shall not be deemed to own any utilities running through his unit which serve more than one unit except as a tenant in common with the other owners. Such right to repair, alter and remodel shall carry the obligations to replace any finishing materials removed with similar or other types or kinds of finishing materials of equal or better quality. An owner shall maintain and keep the interior of his own unit in good repair, including the fixtures

thereof and the patio or deck attached thereto and the fence separating the patios. All fixtures and equipment installed within the unit and servicing that unit, commencing at a point where the utility lines, pipes, wires, conduits, or systems (which for brevity are hereafter referred to as "utilities") enter the unit shall be maintained and kept in good repair by the owner thereof. An owner shall do no act nor any work that will impair the structural soundness or integrity of the building or impair any easement or hereditament.

- BY-LAWS. Each owner shall comply strictly with the provisions of this Declaration, and provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Association, and the rules and regulations of the Association adopted pursuant thereto as the same may be lawfully amended from time to time. Failure so to comply shall be grounds for an action to recover sums due and for damages or injunctive relief or both, maintainable by the Managing Agent or Board of Managers in the name of the Association on behalf of the owners or, in a proper case, by an aggrieved owner.
- Declaration shall not be revoked nor shall any of the provisions herein be amended unless the owners representing 75% or more of the aggregate ownership interest in the general common elements and all of the holders of any recorded mortgage or deed of trust covering or affecting any or all condominium units unanimously consent and agree to such revocation or amendment by instrument(s) duly recorded; however, the percentage of the undivided interest in the general common elements appurtenant to each unit, as expressed in this Declaration, shall have a permanent character and shall not be altered without the consent of all of the condominium unit owners as expressed in a duly recorded amendment to this Declaration.
- ments made upon the owners by the Association shall be based upon the cash requirements deemed to be such aggregate sum as the Managing Agent or Board of Managers of the Association shall from time to time determine is to be paid by all of the condominium unit owners, including Declarant, to provide for the payment of all estimated expenses growing out of or connected with the maintenance and operation of the general common elements. Said sum may include, among other things,

the following: Expenses of management; taxes and special assessments, until separately assessed; fire insurance with extended coverage and vandalism and malicious mischief insurance with endorsements attached issued in the amount of the maximum replacement value of all of the condominium units; casualty and public liability and other insurance premiums; landscaping and care of grounds; snow removal; repairs and renovations; garbage and trash collections; wages; water charges; electrical charges; legal and accounting fees; expenses and liabilities incurred by the Managing Agent or Board of Managers of the Association under or by reason of this Declaration; the payment of any deficit remaining from a previous period; the creation of a reasonable contingency or other reserve or surplus fund as well as other costs and expenses relating to the general common elements. The omission or failure of the Board to fix the assessment for any period shall not be deemed a waiver, modification, or a release of the owners from their obligation to pay.

18. INSURANCE.

- The Managing Agent or Board of Managers of the Association shall obtain and maintain at all times, to the extent obtainable, policies involving standard premium rates, established by the Colorado Insurance Commissioner, and written with companies licensed to do business in Colorado and having a Best's Insurance Report rating of A & X, covering the risks set forth below. The Managing Agent or Board of Managers of the Association shall not obtain any policy where: (i) under the terms of the insurance company's charter, bylaws or policy, contributions or assessments may be made against the Mortgagor or Mortgagee's designee; or (ii) by the terms of carrier's charter, bylaws or policy, loss payments are contingent upon action by the company's Board of Directors, policyholders or members; or (iii) the policy includes any limiting clauses (other than insurance conditions) which could prevent Mortgagees or the Mortgagor from collecting insurance proceeds. The types of coverages to be obtained and risks to be covered are as follows, to-wit:
- (1) Fire insurance with extended coverage and standard all risk endorsements, which endorsements shall include endorsements for

vandalism and malicious mischief. Said casualty insurance shall insure the entire Condominium project and any property, the nature of which is a common element (including all of the Units and fixtures therein initially installed by the Declarant but not including furniture, furnishings or other personal property supplied by or installed by Unit Owners) together with all service equipment contained therein in an amount equal to the full replacement value, without deduction for depreciation. All policies shall contain a standard non-contributory mortgage clause in favor of each Mortgagee of a Condominium Unit, which shall provide that the loss, if any, thereunder, shall be payable to the Association for the use and benefit of Mortgagees as their interests may appear.

- damage insurance in such limits as the Managing Agent or Board of Managers of the Association may from time to time determine, but not in an amount less than \$500,000.00 per injury, per person, per occurrence and umbrella liability limits of \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence, covering claims for bodily injury or property damage. Coverage shall include, without limitation, liability for personal injuries, operation of motor vehicles on behalf of the Association, and activities in connection with the ownership, operation, maintenance and other use of the common elements. Said policy shall also contain a "severability of interest" endorsement.
- (3) The Association shall purchase adequate fidelity coverage against dishonesty of employees, destruction or disappearance of money or securities and forgery. Said policy shall also contain endorsements thereto covering any persons who serve the Association without compensation.
- (4) The Association may obtain insurance against such other risks, of a similar
 or dissimilar nature, as it shall deem appropriate with respect to the common elements, including plate or other glass insurance and any personal property of the association located thereon.

- All policies of insurance to the extent obtainable shall contain waivers of subrogation and waivers of any defense based on invalidity arising from any acts of a Condominium Unit Owner and shall provide that such policies may not be cancelled or modified without at least ten (10) days prior written notice to all of the insureds, including Mortgagees. If requested in writing by one or more of the Mortgagees, duplicate originals of all policies and renewals thereof, together with proof of payments of premiums, shall be delivered to all Mortgagees at least ten (10) days prior to expiration of the then current policies. The insurance shall be carried in blanket form naming the Association as the insured, as attorney-in-fact for all of the Condominium Unit Owners, which policy or policies shall indentify the interest of each Condominium Unit Owner (Owner's name and Unit number designation) and first Mortgagee. Further, the Association shall require the insurance company or companies providing the insurance coverages described herein to provide each Owner and Mortgagee a Certificate of Insurance in regard to such Owner's individual Condominium Unit.
- (c) Condominium Unit Owners may carry other insurance for their benefit and at their expense, provided that all such policies shall contain waivers of subrogation, and provided further that the liability of the carriers issuing insurance obtained by the Association shall not be affected or diminished by reason of any such additional insurance carried by any Unit Owner.
- (d) Insurance coverage on furnishings, including carpet, draperies, oven, range, refrigerator, wallpaper, disposal and other items of personalty or other property belonging to an Owner and public liability coverage within each Unit shall be the sole and direct responsibility of the Unit Owner thereof, and the Board of Man-

agers, the Association and/or the Managing Agent shall have no responsibility therefor.

- (e) In the event that there shall be any damage or destruction to, or loss of or taking of a Unit which exceeds \$1,000.00 or any damage or destruction to, or loss to or taking of the common elements which exceeds \$10,000.00, then notice of such damage or loss or taking shall be given by the Association to each first Mortgagee of said Condominium Unit within ten (10) days after the occurrence of such event and the cost of repair is determined.
- LIABILITY FOR ASSESSMENTS. All owners shall be obligated to pay the estimated assessments imposed by the Board of Managers of the Association to meet the common ex-The assessments shall be made pro rata according to each owner's percentage interest in and to the general common elements. Assessments for the estimated common expenses, including insurance, shall be due in advance for such periods as may be determined by the Board of Managers. The Board of Managers shall prepare and deliver or mail to each owner an itemized quarterly statement showing the various estimated or actual expenses for which the assessments are made. No owner may exempt himself from liability for his contribution towards the common expenses by waiver of the use or enjoyment of any of the general common elements, or by abandonment of his unit.
- 20. LIEN FOR NONPAYMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES. All sums assessed but unpaid for the share of common expenses chargeable to any condominium unit, including interest thereon at 12 per cent (1) per annum, shall constitute a lien on such unit superior (prior) to all other liens and encumbrances except:
 - (a) Tax and special assessment liens in favor of any governmental assessing unit; and
 - (b) All sums unpaid on a first mortgage or first deed of trust of record, including all unpaid obligatory sums as may be provided by such encumbrance, and including additional advances

made thereon prior to the arising of such a lien.

To evidence such lien the Board of Managers shall prepare a written notice setting forth the amount of such unpaid indebtedness, the name of the owner of the condominium unit and a description of the condominium unit. Such a notice shall be signed by one of the Board of Managers or by the Managing Agent and shall be recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of the County of Garfield, State of Colorado. Prior to such recording a copy thereof shall be delivered to the person or entity holding a first lien on the unit. Such lien for the common expenses shall attach from the date of the failure of payment of assessment, and may be enforced by foreclosure on the defaulting owner's condominium unit by the Association in like manner as a mortgage or deed of trust on real property upon the recording of a notice or claim thereof. In any such foreclosure the owner shall be required to pay the costs and expenses of such proceedings, the costs and expenses for filing the notice or claim of lien and all reasonable attorney's fees. The Association shall have the power to bid on the condominium unit at foreclosure sale and to acquire and hold, lease, mortgage, and convey the same. The amount of the common expenses assessed against each condominium unit shall also be a debt of the owner thereof at the time the assessment is made. Suit to recover a money judgment for unpaid common expenses shall be maintainable without foreclosing or waiving the lien securing same. Any encumbrancer holding a lien on a condominium unit may pay any unpaid common expenses payable with respect to such unit, and upon such payment such encumbrancer shall have a lien on such unit for the amounts paid of the same rank as the lien of his encumbrance. A recorded lien may be released by recording a Release of Lien to be signed by an officer of the Association. or by the Managing Agent on behalf of the Association.

21. LIABILITY FOR COMMON EXPENSE UPON TRANSFER OF CONDOMINIUM UNIT. Upon payment of a reasonable fee, not to exceed twenty-five dollars (\$25.00), and upon the written request of any owner or any mortgagee or prospective mortgagee of a condominium unit, the Association, by its Managing Agent or Board of Managers, shall issue a written statement setting forth the amount of the unpaid common expenses, if any, with respect to the subject unit, the amount of the current periodic

assessment and the date such assessment becomes due, credit for advanced payments or for prepaid items, including, but not limited to insurance premiums, which shall be conclusive upon the Association in favor of all persons who rely thereon in Unless such request for a statement of indebtedgood faith. ness is complied with within ten days, all unpaid common expenses which become due prior to the date of making such request shall be subordinate to the lien of the person requesting such statement. The grantee of a unit shall be jointly and severally liable with the grantor for all unpaid assessments against the latter for his proportionate share of the common expenses up to the time of the grant or conveyance, without prejudice to the grantee's right to recover from the grantor the amounts paid by the grantee therefor; provided, however, that upon payment of a reasonable fee, not to exceed twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00), and upon written request, any prospective grantee shall be entitled to a statement from the Managing Agent or Board of Managers, setting forth the amount of the unpaid assessments, if any, with respect to the subject unit, the amount of the current monthly assessments, and the date that such assessment becomes due, credit for advanced payments or for prepaid items, including, but not limited to, insurance premiums, which shall be conclusive upon the Associ-Unless such request for a statement of indebtedness shall be complied with within ten (10) days of such request, then such grantee shall not be liable for, nor shall the unit conveyed be subject to a lien for, any unpaid assessments against the subject unit. The provision of this paragraph shall not apply upon the initial transfer of the condominium units by Declarant and shall also not apply to first mortgagees prior to such time as such first mortgagees may become an owner of a condominium unit pursuant to a foreclosure proceeding or the taking of a deed in lieu thereof.

owner shall have the right, from time to time, to mortgage or encumber his interest by deed of trust, mortgage, or other security instrument. A first mortgage shall be one which has first and paramount priority under applicable law. The owner of a condominium unit may create junior mortgages on the following conditions: (1) Any such junior mortgages shall always be subordinate to all of the terms, conditions, covenants, restrictions, uses, limitations, obligations, lien for common expenses, and other obligations created by this Declaration, the Certificate of Incorporation and the By-Laws of the Association. (2) The Mortgagee under any junior mortgage shall

release, for the purpose of restoration of any improvements upon the mortgaged premises, all of his right, title, and interest in and to the proceeds under all insurance policies upon said premises which insurance policies were effected and placed upon the mortgaged premises by the Association. Such release shall be furnished forthwith by a junior mortgagee upon written request of the Association.

- This Declara-ASSOCIATION AS ATTORNEY-IN-FACT. 23. tion hereby makes mandatory the irrevocable appointment of an attorney-in-fact to deal with the property upon its destruction or obsolescence. Title to any condominium unit is declared and expressly made subject to the terms and conditions hereof, and acceptance by any grantee of a deed from the Declarant or from any owner shall constitute appointment of the attorney-in-fact herein provided. All of the owners irrevocably constitute and appoint the Association their true and lawful attorney in their name, place, and stead for the purpose of dealing with the property upon its destruction or obsolescence as is hereafter provided. As attorney-in-fact, the Association, by its president and secretary, shall have full and complete authorization, right and power to make, execute and deliver any contract, deed or any other instrument with respect to the interest of a condominium unit owner which are necessary and appropriate to exercise the powers herein granted. Repair and reconstruction of the improvements as used in the succeeding subparagraphs means restoring the improvements to substantially the same condition in which it existed prior to the damage, with each unit and the general common elements having the same vertical and horizontal boundaries as before. The proceeds of any insurance collected shall be available to the Association for the purpose of repair, restoration, or replacements unless the owners and all first mortgagees agree not to rebuild in accordance with the provisions set forth hereinafter.
 - (a) In the event of damage or destruction due to fire or other disaster, the insurance proceeds, if sufficient to reconstruct the improvements, shall be applied by the Association, as attorney-in-fact, to such reconstruction, and the improvements shall be promptly repaired and reconstructed. The Association shall have full authority, right and power, as attorney-in-fact, to cause the repair and restoration of the improvements.

- (b) If the insurance proceeds are insufficient to repair and reconstruct the improvements and such damage does not render more than one-half (1/2) of the units and untenantable, such damage or destruction shall be promptly repaired and reconstructed by the Association, as attorney-in-fact, using the proceeds of insurance and the proceeds of an assessment to be made against all of the owners and their condominium units. Such deficiency assessment shall be a common expense and made pro rata according to each owner's percentage interest in the general common elements, and shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof. The Association shall have the authority to cause the repair or restoration of the improvements using all of the insurance proceeds for such purpose, notwithstanding the failure of an owner to pay the assessment. The assessment provided for herein shall be a debt of each owner and a lien on his condominium unit and may be enforced and collected as is provided in Paragraph 20 above. In addition thereto, the Association, as attorney-in-fact, shall have the absolute right and power to sell the condominium unit of any owner refusing or failing to pay such deficiency assessment within the time provided and if not so paid, the Association shall cause to be recorded a notice that the condominium unit of the delinquent owner shall be sold by the Association. Prior to recording such notice, a copy thereof shall be delivered to the person or entity holding a first lien on the unit. The proceeds derived from the sale of such condominium unit shall be used and disbursed by the Association, as attorney-in-fact, in following order:
 - (1) For payment of the balance of the lien of any first mortgage;
 - (2) For payment of taxes and special assessment liens in favor of any assessing entity.

- (3) For payment of unpaid common expenses;
- (4) For payment of junior liens and encumbrances in order of and to the extent of their priority; and
- (5) The balance remaining, if any, shall be paid to the condominium unit owner.
- If more than one-half (1/2) of the units are rendered untenantable by fire or other casualty no reconstruction or repair shall take place unless at a meeting which shall be called within ninety (90) days of the occurrence of the casualty or if by such date the insurance loss has not been finally adjusted, then thirty (30) days thereafter, the owners of a majority of the condominium units vote in favor of reconstruction or repair. Such plan for reconstruction or repair must have the unanimous approval or consent of every first mortgagee. In the event such a plan is not approved by the owners or first mortgagees, the Association shall forthwith record a notice setting forth such a fact or facts, and upon the recording of such notice by the Association's president and secretary, the entire remaining premises shall be sold by the Association, as attorney-in-fact for all of the owners, free and clear of the provisions contained in this Declaration, the Map and By-Laws. The insurance settlement proceeds collected by the Association, and such proceeds shall be divided by the Association according to each unit owner's interest (as such interests may appear on the policy or policies) and such dividend proceeds shall be paid into a. separate account representing each condominium unit. Each such account shall be in the name of the Association, and shall be further identified by the number of the unit and the rame of the owner. From each separate account, the Association, as attorney-in-fact, shall use and disburse the total amount of each of such funds, without contribution from one account to another, ... toward the partial or full payment of the lien !!

of any first mortgage against the condominium unit represented by such separate account. There shall be added to each such account the apportioned amount of the proceeds derived from the sale of the entire property. Such apportionment shall be based upon each condominium unit owner's percentage interest in the general common elements. The total funds of each account shall be used and disbursed, without contribution from one account to another by the Association, as attorney-in-fact, for the same purposes and in the same order as is provided in subparagraph (b) (1) through (5) of this paragraph.

If the owners of a majority of the condominium units adopt a plan for reconstruction, which plan has the unanimous approval of all first mortgagees, then all of the owners shall be bound by the terms and other provisions of such plan. Any assessment made in connection with such plan shall be a common expense and made pro rata according to each owner's percentage interest in the general common elements. Such assessment shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is given. The Association shall have the authority to cause the repair or restoration of the improvements using all of the insurance proceeds for such purposes notwithstanding the failure of an owner to pay the assessment. The assessment provided for herein shall be a debt of each owner and a lien on his condominium unit and may be enforced and collected as is provided in Paragraph 20. In addition thereto, the Association, as attorney-in-fact, shall have the absolute right and power to sell the condominium unit of any owner refusing or failing to pay such assessment within the time provided, and if not so paid, the Association shall cause to be recorded a notice that the condominium unit of the delinquent owner shall be sold by the Association. Prior to recording such notice, a copy thereof shall be delivered to the person or entity holding a first lien on the unit. The proceeds derived from the sale of such condominium unit shall be used and disbursed by the Association, as attorney-in-fact,

for the same purposes and in the same order as provided in subparagraph (c) (1) through (5) of this paragraph.

- (e) The owners of seventy-five percent (75%) or more of the general common elements may agree that the general common elements of the property are obsolete and that the same should be renewed or reconstructed. In such instance after notice to and coordination with any first mortgagees, then the expense thereof shall be payable by all of the owners as common expenses.
- The owners of seventy-five (75%) or more of the general common elements may agree that the condominium units are obsolete and that the same should be sold. Such agreement must have the unanimous approval of every first mortgagee. such instance, the Association shall forthwith record a notice setting forth such fact or facts, and upon the recording of such notice by the Association's president and secretary, the entire premises shall be sold by the Association, as attorney-in-fact for all of the owners, free and clear of the provisions contained in this Declaration, the Map, and the By-Laws. The sales proceeds shall be apportioned between the owners on the basis of each owner's percentage interest in the general common elements, and such apportioned proceeds shall be paid into separate accounts representing each condominium unit. Each such account shall be in the name of the Association, and shall be further identified by the number of the unit and the name of the owner. From each "separate account, the Association, as attorney-infact, shall use and disburse the total amount of such accounts, without contribution from one account to another, for the same purposes and in the same order as if provided in subparagraph (b) (1) through (5) of this paragraph.
- 24. PERSONAL PROPERTY FOR COMMON USE. Prior to the first conveyance of any condominium unit, Declarant shall execute and deliver a bill of sale to the Association, transferring all items of personal property located on the

entire premises and furnished by Declarant, and intended for the common use and enjoyment of the condominium unit owners and occupants. The Association shall hold title to such property for the use and enjoyment of the condominium unit owners and occupants. No owner shall have any other interest and right thereto and all such right and interest shall absolutely terminate upon the owner's termination of possession or ownership of his condominium unit.

- other notices intended to be served upon an owner shall be sent by ordinary mail or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed in the name of such owner in care of the unit number and building address of such owner and to the person or entity holding a first lien on the unit. All notices, demands, or other notices intended to be served upon the Managing Agent or the Board of Managers of the Association or the Association shall be sent by ordinary or certified mail, postage prepaid, to Skyline Condominiums, 0189 160 Road, Glenwood Springs, Colorado, 81601.
- 26. PERIOD OF CONDOMINIUM OWNERSHIP. The separate condominium estates created by this Declaration and the Map shall continue until this Declaration is revoked in the manner and as is provided in paragraph 16 of this Declaration or until terminated in the manner and as is provided in subparagraphs (c) and (f) of paragraph 23 of this Declaration.

27. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS.

- (a) Dogs and cats shall be permitted only in accordance with the following terms and conditions:
 - (1) A dog shall not weigh more than twenty (20) pounds.
 - (2) They are maintained strictly in accordance with applicable ordinances of the Town of Silt, Colorado.
 - (3) They do not become a nuisance by reason of noise, viciousness, uncleanliness or other reason disturbing to other owners.

The owner of any dog or cat deemed to be

in violation of the above terms and conditions by the Board of Managers shall forthwith remove such dog or cat from the condominium project upon written notice being delivered to the owner by the Board of Managers.

- (b) No advertising signs, billboards, unsightly objects or nuisances shall be erected, placed, or permitted to remain on the premises, nor shall the premises be used in any way or for any purpose which may endanger the health or unreasonably disturb the owner of any condominium unit or any resident thereof. (For a period of one year, Declarant and its sales agent shall be permitted to erect signs and maintain a sales office for the purpose of marketing the subject condominium units). Otherwise, no business activities of any kind whatever shall be conducted in any building or in any portion of the property; provided, however, the foregoing covenants shall not apply to signs identifying the buildings, units, common areas or other improvements.
- (c) No nuisances shall be allowed on the condominium property, nor any use or practice which is the source of annoyance to residents or which interfers with the peaceful enjoyment or possession and proper use of the property by its residents. All parts of the property shall be kept in a clean and sanitary condition, and no rubbish, refuse, or garbage shall be allowed to accumulate nor any fire hazard to exist. No unit owner shall permit any use of his unit or make use of the general common elements which will increase the rate of insurance upon the condominium property. The Association may adopt rules and regulations relative to abatement and enjoinment of nuisances.
- (d) No immoral, improper, offension, or unlawful use shall be permitted or made of the condominium property or any part thereof. All valid laws, ordinances, and regulations of all governmental bodies having jurisdiction and all covenants shall be observed.
 - (e) Rules and regulations may be adopted by

the Board of Managers of the Association concerning and governing the use of the general common elements; provided, however, that such rules and regulations shall be furnished to unit owners prior to the time that they become effective and that such rules and regulations shall be uniform and nondiscriminatory.

- (f) Except for those improvements erected or installed by Declarant, no exterior additions, alterations, or decorating to the exteriors of any buildings, walls, and other structures shall be commenced, erected, or maintained without the prior written approval of the Board of Managers of the Association.
- (g) No recreational vehicles or vehicles which are inoperable, wrecked or do not bear valid and current license plates and safety inspection stickers or trucks in excess of three-quarter (3/4) ton in size shall be stored, parked or located on the condominium project. "Recreational vehicles" means motor homes, travel trailers, boats, boat trailers, snowmobiles, snowmobile trailers, camper trailers, detached camper shells or other such like or similar vehicles or equipment whose principal function is recreational use. In the event any prohibited vehicles or equipment are required to be removed from the condominium project by the Town of Silt, Colorado, all costs incurred by said Town, including attorney fees, shall be paid by the cwner of the vehicle or equipment so removed.
 - (h) No items shall be stored on the premises which give an unsightly appearance to the buildings when viewed from the outside.
- 28. AUTOMOBILE PARKING FACILITIES. As a part of the general common elements there shall be designated on the condominium map various automobile parking areas which shall be under the exclusive control of the Association. Two (2) parking spaces shall be assigned to each unit. The use thereof shall be only for the parking of vehicles authorized hereunder.
- 29. ACCEPTANCE OF PROVISIONS IN ALL DOCUMENTS.

 The conveyance or encumbrance of a condominium unit shall be

deemed to include the acceptance of all of the provisions of this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Association and rules and regulations from time to time adopted by the Association and shall be binding upon each grantee or encumbrancer without the necessity of inclusion of such an express provision in the instrument of conveyance or encumbrance.

30. Amendment. The within Declaration may only be amended after first obtaining the written approval thereof from the Town of Silt, Colorado.

31. GENERAL

- (a) "Declarant" as used herein means the named Declarant, Van Hoose and Colohan, a general partnership.
- (b) If any of the provisions of this Declaration of any paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word, or the application thereof in any circumstances be invalidated, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Declaration, and the application of any such provision, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word in any other circumstance shall not be affected thereby.
- (c) The provisions of this Declaration shall be in addition to and supplemental to the Condominium Ownership Act of the State of Colorado and to all other provisions of law.
- (d) That whenever used herein, unless the context shall otherwise provide, the singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender shall include all genders.
- (e) Paragraph titles are for convenience of reference and are not intended to limit, enlarge or change the meaning of the contents of the various paragraphs.
- (f) Paragraph titles are for convenience of reference and are not intended to limit, enlarge or change the meaning of the contents of the various

paragraphs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Declarant has duly executed this Declaration this 21/2 day of (1989).

VAN HOOSE AND COLOHAN

By Jonald L. Jan Hoose, General Partner

By William J. Colohan, General Partner

STATE OF COLORADO) ss CONNEY OF GARFIELD)

The foregoing Condominium Declaration for Skyline Ondominiums was acknowledged before me this <u>Sthe</u> day of 1980 by Donald Van Hoose and William J. Colohan general partners of Van Hoose and Colohan.

mmission expires Nov. 26, 1983